

POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

NOTICE OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS

- 1) Heading of the Part: Activity Standards
- 2) Code Citation: 35 Ill. Adm. Code 1421
- 3)

<u>Section Numbers:</u>	<u>Proposed Actions:</u>
1421.101	Repealed
1421.110	Amendment
1421.111	Amendment
1421.121	Amendment
1421.131	Amendment
1421.140	Amendment
1421.141	Amendment
- 4) Statutory Authority: Implementing Section 56.2 and authorized by Section 27 of the Environmental Protection Act [415 ILCS 5/56.2 and 5/27].
- 5) A Complete Description of the Subjects and Issues Involved: Part 1421 contain the standards for segregating, packaging, labeling and marking, and transportation of potentially infectious medical waste. In Part 1421, the Board is removing legalese, redundant and superfluous language, and reorganizing some provisions for clarity. The Board repeals Section 1421.101 because the compliance dates are no longer relevant.
- 6) Published studies or reports, and sources of underlying data, used to compose this rulemaking: None
- 7) Will this rulemaking replace an emergency rule currently in effect? No
- 8) Does this rulemaking contain an automatic repeal date? No
- 9) Does this rulemaking contain incorporations by reference? No
- 10) Are there any other rulemakings pending on this Part? No
- 11) Statement of Statewide Policy Objective: The amendments seek to improve accessibility and ease compliance with the Board's rules. The proposed changes involve updating definitions and references, and removing legalese and reorganizing some provisions to simplify language and improve clarity.
- 12) Time, Place, and Manner in which interested persons may comment on this proposed

RECEIVED
MAR 01 2019
STATE OF ILLINOIS
Pollution Control Board

POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

NOTICE OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS

rulemaking: The Board will accept written public comments on this proposal for a period of at least 45 days after the date of publication in the *Illinois Register*. Public comments must be filed with the Clerk of the Board. Public comments should reference Docket R18-29 and be addressed to:

Clerk's Office
Illinois Pollution Control Board
JRTC 100 W. Randolph St., Suite 11-500
Chicago IL 60601

Public comments may also be filed electronically through the Clerk's Office On-Line (COOL) on the Board's website at pcb.illinois.gov.

Interested persons may request copies of the Board's opinion and order in R18-29 by calling the Clerk's office at 312/814-3620 or may download copies from the Board's website at pcb.illinois.gov.

- 13) Initial Regulatory Flexibility Analysis:
- A) Types of small businesses, small municipalities and not-for-profit corporations affected: None, the amendments are non-substantive.
 - B) Reporting, bookkeeping or other procedures required for compliance: None
 - C) Types of professional skills necessary for compliance: None
- 14) Small Business Impact Analysis: None
- 15) Regulatory Agenda on which this rulemaking was summarized: July 2018

The full text of the Proposed Amendments begins on the next page:

1 TITLE 35: ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
2 SUBTITLE M: BIOLOGICAL MATERIALS
3 CHAPTER I: POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD
4 SUBCHAPTER b: POTENTIALLY INFECTIOUS MEDICAL WASTES
5

6 PART 1421
7 ACTIVITY STANDARDS
8
9

10 SUBPART A: GENERAL PROVISIONS
11

12 Section
13 1421.101 Compliance Dates (Repealed)
14

15 SUBPART B: SEGREGATION
16

17 Section
18 1421.110 Scope and Applicability
19 1421.111 Standards and Criteria
20

21 SUBPART C: PACKAGING
22

23 Section
24 1421.120 Scope and Applicability
25 1421.121 Standards and Criteria
26

27 SUBPART D: LABELING AND MARKING
28

28 Section
29 1421.130 Scope and Applicability
30 1421.131 Standards and Criteria
31

32 SUBPART E: TRANSPORTATION
33

33 Section
34 1421.140 Scope and Applicability
35 1421.141 Standards and Criteria
36

37 1421.ILLUSTRATION A International Biohazard Symbol
38

39 AUTHORITY: Implementing Section 56.2 and authorized by Section 27 of the Environmental
40 Protection Act [415 ILCS 5].
41

42 SOURCE: Adopted in R91-20, at 17 Ill. Reg. 10392, effective June 21, 1993; amended in R18-
43 29 at 43 Ill. Reg. _____, effective _____.

44
45 SUBPART A: GENERAL PROVISIONS
46

47 **Section 1421.101 Compliance Dates (Repealed)**
48

49 ~~Persons subject to this Part shall comply with its standards and criteria by June 21, 1993~~
50 ~~(effective date).~~
51

52 (Source: Repealed at 43 Ill. Reg. _____, effective _____)
53

54 SUBPART B: SEGREGATION
55

56 **Section 1421.110 Scope and Applicability**
57

58 This Subpart applies to persons who generate or transport PIMW, and to owners or operators of
59 PIMW storage sites, transfer stations, and treatment facilities.
60

61 (Source: Amended at 43 Ill. Reg. _____, effective _____)
62

63 **Section 1421.111 Standards and Criteria**
64

65 a) Generators ~~must~~shall segregate PIMW as follows:
66

- 67 1) Sharps;
68
69 2) Oversized PIMW; and
70
71 3) All other.
72

73 b) PIMW mixed with other waste is regulated under this Subtitle as PIMW and the
74 mixture is not exempt from any other applicable regulations.
75

76 c) This Section does not prohibit the placing of previously segregated and properly
77 packaged (~~compliant in accordance with Section 1421. Subpart C of this Part~~)
78 sharps with other waste ~~if, provided~~ the mixture is managed in
79 compliance~~accordance~~ with subsection (b) ~~of this Section~~.
80

81 (Source: Amended at 43 Ill. Reg. _____, effective _____)
82

83 SUBPART C: PACKAGING
84

85 **Section 1421.121 Standards and Criteria**
86

87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129

- a) PIMW, except for oversized PIMW, must be placed in a container, or a combination of containers. ~~The~~Such container must be:
 - 1) ~~Rigid~~rigid;
 - 2) ~~Leak-resistant~~leak-resistant;
 - 3) ~~Impervious to moisture~~impervious to moisture;
 - 4) ~~Of a strength sufficient to prevent tearing or bursting under normal conditions of use and handling; and of a strength sufficient to prevent tearing or bursting under normal conditions of use and handling; and~~Of a strength sufficient to prevent tearing or bursting under normal conditions of use and handling;
 - 5) ~~Sealed to prevent leakage during transport.~~sealed to prevent leakage during transport. (Section 56.1(b)(2)(A))
- b) Sharps, unless rendered unrecognizable ~~by treatment pursuant to 35 Ill. Adm. Code 1422.126(a)~~, must be packaged in a container, or a combination of containers, that is puncture-resistant and ~~complies with~~meets the requirements of subsection (a) ~~of this Section~~.
- c) Oversized PIMW must be covered or packaged in a manner that minimizes contact with transport workers and the public. ~~Do not package sharps~~Sharps must not be packaged with oversized PIMW in the same container.
- d) If the outside of a container is contaminated by PIMW, ~~a person shall place the container~~ must be placed inside another container, or ~~the container must be cleaned and disinfected in compliance~~clean and disinfect the container in accordance with 35 Ill. Adm. Code 1420.107 ~~of this Subtitle~~. In either case, the container or combination of containers must ~~comply with subsection~~meet applicable requirements of subsections (a) or (b) ~~of this Section~~.
- e) Once a reusable container has been cleaned and disinfected in ~~compliance~~accordance with 35 Ill. Adm. Code 1420.107 ~~of this Subtitle~~, it can be used for only waste. If a reusable container is not or cannot be cleaned and disinfected in ~~compliance~~accordance with 35 Ill. Adm. Code ~~Section 1420.107 of this Subtitle~~, it must be regulated as PIMW ~~under~~pursuant to this Subtitle.
- f) Residues from cleaning a PIMW container, or discharges from PIMW packages, are regulated under this Subtitle, except when discharged directly into a sanitary or combined sewer in ~~compliance~~accordance with 35 Ill. Adm. Code Subtitle C.

BOARD NOTE: Interested persons should note that units of local government

130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172

~~can regulate discharges to sewer systems can also be regulated by units of local government.~~

(Source: Amended at 43 Ill. Reg. _____, effective _____)

SUBPART D: LABELING AND MARKING

Section 1421.131 Standards and Criteria

- a) The exterior of the outer package must be marked as follows ~~before~~^{prior to} shipment:
 - 1) The generator ~~must~~^{shall}:
 - A) Mark on two opposite sides of the outer package in lettering that is readable at a minimum distance of five (5)-feet:
 - i) The International Biohazard Symbol, as shown in Illustration A, ~~of this Part~~ and the word "Biohazard"; and
 - ii) The word "~~Sharps~~^{sharps}", if the package contains sharps.
 - B) Mark with indelible ink in lettering that is legible on a water-resistant label or tag securely attached to or marked on the outer package:
 - i) The generator's name;₅
 - ii) The generator's address;₅ and
 - iii) The generator's phone number (a 24-hour phone number, if available).
 - 2) The transporter ~~must~~^{shall} mark with indelible ink in lettering that is legible on a water-resistant label or tag securely attached to or marked on the outer package:
 - A) The transporter's name;₅
 - B) The transporter's permit number;₅
 - C) The transporter's address;₅

- 173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
- D) The transporter's phone number (a 24-hour phone number, if available);⁵ and
 - E) For each PIMW package, the shipment date when PIMW initially left the generator's site; or for each shipment, a unique identification number ~~that~~^{which} directly corresponds to the initial date of shipment.
- b) Except for subsection (c) ~~of this Section~~, inner packages must be marked as described in subsection (a)(1)(A)(i) ~~of this Section~~.
 - c) If a sharps container is packaged within an outer container, the inner sharps container must be marked with indelible ink in lettering that is legible as follows:
 - 1) The International Biohazard Symbol, as shown in Illustration A, ~~of this Part~~ and the word "Biohazard~~biohazard~~"; and
 - 2) The word "Sharps~~sharps~~".
 - d) Containers ~~that~~^{which} are not the inner or outer containers are exempt from ~~the labeling requirements in subsection (a) of this Section~~. Packages may be placed in a transparent container ~~if provided that~~ all required markings are legible through the transparent container. A non-rigid transparent container cannot be used as an outer container.
 - e) For oversized PIMW, the following requirements must be met ~~before~~^{prior to} shipment:
 - 1) The generator ~~must~~^{shall}:
 - A) Mark on one side of the outer package in lettering that is readable at a minimum distance of five (5)-feet the International Biohazard Symbol, as shown in Illustration A, ~~of this Part~~ and the word "Biohazard~~biohazard~~".
 - B) Mark with indelible ink in lettering that is legible on a water-resistant label or tag securely attached to or marked on the outer package:
 - i) The generator's name;⁵
 - ii) The generator's address;⁵ and

216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258

iii) The generator's phone number (a 24-hour phone number, if available).

2) The transporter ~~must~~ shall mark with indelible ink in lettering that is legible on a water-resistant label or tag securely attached to or marked on the outer package:

A) The transporter's name;

B) The transporter's permit number;

C) The transporter's address;

D) The transporter's phone number (a 24-hour phone number, if available); and

E) For each PIMW package, the shipment date when PIMW initially left the generator's site; or for each shipment, a unique identification number which directly corresponds to the initial date of shipment.

f) When PIMW is transported by more than one transporter, each transporter ~~must~~ shall mark with indelible ink in lettering that is legible on a water-resistant label or tag securely attached to or marked on the outer package the information listed in subsection (a)(2) ~~of this Section~~. The label, tag, or mark must not obscure any previous information on the package.

(Source: Amended at 43 Ill. Reg. _____, effective _____)

SUBPART E: TRANSPORTATION

Section 1421.140 Scope and Applicability

This Subpart applies to persons who transport PIMW and are required to have a PIMW hauling permit ~~by in accordance with 35 Ill. Adm. Code 1420.105 of this Subtitle~~.

(Source: Amended at 43 Ill. Reg. _____, effective _____)

Section 1421.141 Standards and Criteria

a) PIMW must be transported under conditions that:

1) ~~Minimize to minimize~~ Minimize to minimize the effects of putrescence; and.

259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301

- 2) prevent a breeding place or food source for vectors.
- b) Packages of PIMW must be transported:
 - 1) ~~Only~~ only in enclosed compartments of vehicles that are secured against public access when unattended. This ~~requirement~~ does not apply to oversized PIMW, which must be handled in a manner that minimizes contact with transport workers and the public; and.
 - 2) In a manner that:
 - A) prevents compaction of packages; or
 - B) does not subject them to stress that compromises the integrity of the container.
- c) Vehicles and associated storage compartments, doors, piping, and valving must be:
 - 1) Cleaned of visible PIMW contamination after each use; and
 - 2) In good repair when transporting PIMW.
- ~~d) PIMW must be transported in a manner that prevents a breeding place or food source for vectors.~~
- ~~e) During transport, a PIMW package must not be compacted or subjected to stress that compromises the integrity of the container.~~
- ~~d~~f) This Subtitle regulates residuesResidues from the cleaning of vehicles contaminated by PIMW ~~are regulated under this Subtitle~~, except when discharged directly into a sanitary or combined sewer in compliance~~accordance~~ with 35 Ill. Adm. Code Subtitle C.

BOARD NOTE: Interested persons should note that units of local government can regulate discharges to sewer systems~~can also be regulated by units of local government.~~
- ~~e~~g) Vehicles transporting PIMW must display information in compliance~~accordance~~ with the PIMW hauling permit.
- ~~f~~h) Emergency Response Plan

302
 303
 304
 305
 306
 307
 308
 309
 310
 311
 312
 313
 314
 315
 316
 317
 318
 319
 320
 321
 322
 323
 324
 325
 326
 327
 328
 329
 330
 331
 332
 333
 334
 335
 336
 337
 338
 339

- 1) The transporter ~~must~~ shall develop and keep an emergency response plan in the vehicle.
- 2) This plan must identify the names and telephone numbers of State and local authorities who must be contacted ~~during~~ in the event of an emergency or discharge of PIMW.
- 3) ~~If there is~~ In the event of an emergency or discharge of PIMW, the transporter ~~must~~ shall take immediate action in ~~compliance~~ accordance with the emergency response plan to protect the health and safety of the public and the environment. In addition, each vehicle transporting PIMW must carry all equipment necessary to provide a response.
- g) Vehicles transporting PIMW must not be used ~~to haul~~ for the hauling of non-waste materials, ~~except for~~ with the exception of equipment and supplies intended for ~~the use of~~ waste management, including scales, bar coding equipment, printers, stampers, manifests, logs, dollies, load locks, conveyers, material handling equipment, plastic containers, corrugated boxes, plastic bags, tape, sharps containers, drums, labels, signs, stickers, spill kits, new PIMW containers or PIMW containers that have been cleaned and disinfected in ~~compliance~~ accordance with 35 Ill. Adm. Code 1420.107 ~~of this Subtitle.~~
- h) PIMW must not be in transport for more than ~~ten~~ (10) calendar days.
- i) This Subpart does not apply to the ~~U.S.~~ United States Postal Service.
- j) ~~Each transporter of PIMW required to have a permit under Section 56.1(f) of the Act must file a report annually with the Agency specifying the quantities and disposition of PIMW transported during the previous calendar year. These reports must be on forms prescribed and provided by the Agency. Commencing March 31, 1993, and annually thereafter, each transporter of PIMW required to have a permit under subsection (f) of Section 56.1 of the Act shall file a report with the agency specifying the quantities and disposition of PIMW transported during the previous calendar year. Such reports shall be on forms prescribed and provided by the Agency. (Section 56.3 of the Act)~~

(Source: Amended at 43 Ill. Reg. _____, effective _____)

TITLE 35: ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
SUBTITLE M: BIOLOGICAL MATERIALS
CHAPTER I: POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD
SUBCHAPTER b: POTENTIALLY INFECTIOUS MEDICAL WASTES

PART 1421
ACTIVITY STANDARDS

SUBPART A: GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section+
1421.101 Compliance Dates (Repealed)

SUBPART B: SEGREGATION

Section
1421.110 Scope and Applicability
1421.111 Standards and Criteria

SUBPART C: PACKAGING

Section
1421.120 Scope and Applicability
1421.121 Standards and Criteria

SUBPART D: LABELING AND MARKING

Section
1421.130 Scope and Applicability
1421.131 Standards and Criteria

SUBPART E: TRANSPORTATION

Section
1421.140 Scope and Applicability
1421.141 Standards and Criteria

1421.ILLUSTRATION A International Biohazard Symbol

AUTHORITY: Implementing Section 56.2 and authorized by Section 27 of the Environmental Protection Act [415 ILCS 5/56.2 and 5/27].

SOURCE: Adopted in R91-20, at 17 Ill. Reg. 10392, effective June 21, 1993; amended in R18-29 at 43 Ill. Reg. _____, effective _____.

SUBPART A: GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1421.101 Compliance Dates (Repealed)

~~Persons subject to this Part shall comply with its standards and criteria by June 21, 1993 (effective date).~~

(Source: Repealed at 43 Ill. Reg. _____, effective _____)

SUBPART B: SEGREGATION

Section 1421.110 Scope and Applicability

This Subpart applies to persons who generate or transport PIMW, and to owners or operators of PIMW storage sites, transfer stations, and treatment facilities.

(Source: Amended at 43 Ill. Reg. _____, effective _____)

Section 1421.111 Standards and Criteria

a) Generators ~~must~~shall~~must~~ segregate PIMW as follows:

- 1) Sharps;~~;~~
- 2) Oversized PIMW;~~;~~ and
- 3) All other.

b) PIMW mixed with other waste is regulated under this Subtitle as PIMW and the mixture is not exempt from any other ~~applicable~~ regulations.

c) This Section does not prohibit ~~the placing of~~ previously segregated and properly packaged (~~compliant in accordance~~compliant with Section 1421.Subpart C ~~of this Part~~) sharps with other waste if, ~~provided~~ the mixture is managed in ~~compliance~~accordance~~compliance~~ with subsection (b) ~~of this Section~~.

(Source: Amended at 43 Ill. Reg. _____, effective _____)

SUBPART C: PACKAGING

Section 1421.121 Standards and Criteria

a) PIMW, except for oversized PIMW, must be placed in a container, or a combination of containers. ~~The Such~~The container must be:

- 1) ~~Rigid~~RIGID~~;~~Rigid;
- 2) Leak-~~resistant~~LEAK-RESISTANT~~;~~resistant;
- 3) Impervious to ~~moisture~~IMPERVIOUS TO MOISTURE~~;~~moisture;

4) Of a strength sufficient to prevent tearing or bursting under normal conditions of use and ~~handling; and OF A STRENGTH SUFFICIENT TO PREVENT TEARING OR BURSTING UNDER NORMAL CONDITIONS OF USE AND HANDLING; AND~~ handling; and

5) Sealed to prevent leakage during transport. ~~SEALED TO PREVENT LEAKAGE DURING TRANSPORT. (Section 56.1(b)(2)(A))~~

b) Sharps, unless rendered unrecognizable by ~~treatment pursuant to 35 Ill. Adm. Code 1422.126(a)~~ treatment, must be packaged in a container, or a combination of containers, that is puncture-resistant and complies ~~with meets the requirements of~~ with subsection (a) ~~of this Section.~~

c) Oversized PIMW must be covered or packaged in a manner that minimizes contact with transport workers and the public. Do not package ~~sharps~~ sharps must not be packaged sharps with oversized PIMW in the same container.

d) If the outside of a container is contaminated by PIMW, ~~must be placed a person shall place~~ the container must be placed inside another container, or ~~clean and disinfect~~ the container ~~in compliance~~ must be cleaned and disinfected in compliance with 35 Ill. Adm. Code ~~1420.107 of this Subtitle.~~ 1420.107. In either case, the container or combination of containers must comply ~~with meet applicable requirements of subsections~~ with subsection (a) or (b) ~~of this Section.~~

e) Once a reusable container has been cleaned and disinfected in ~~compliance~~ compliance with 35 Ill. Adm. Code ~~1420.107 of this Subtitle,~~ 1420.107, it can be used for only waste. If a reusable container is not or cannot be cleaned and disinfected in ~~compliance~~ compliance with 35 Ill. Adm. Code ~~Section 1420.107 of this Subtitle,~~ Code 1420.107, it must be regulated as PIMW ~~under~~ under pursuant to ~~under~~ this Subtitle.

f) Residues from cleaning a PIMW container, or discharges from PIMW packages, are regulated under this Subtitle, except when discharged directly into a sanitary or combined sewer in ~~compliance~~ compliance with 35 Ill. Adm. Code Subtitle C.

BOARD NOTE: Interested persons should note that units of local government can regulate discharges to sewer systems ~~can also be regulated by units of local government.~~

(Source: Amended at 43 Ill. Reg. _____, effective _____)

SUBPART D: LABELING AND MARKING

Section 1421.131 Standards and Criteria

a) The exterior of the outer package must be marked as follows ~~before prior to~~ before shipment:

1) The generator ~~must~~shall~~must~~:

A) Mark on two opposite sides of the outer package in lettering that is readable at a minimum distance of five ~~(5)~~ feet:

i) The International Biohazard Symbol, as shown in ~~Section 1421~~ Illustration A ~~of this Part~~, and the word "Biohazard"; and

ii) The word "Sharps" ~~"sharps"~~, if the package contains sharps.

B) Mark with indelible ink in lettering that is legible on a water-resistant label or tag securely attached to or marked on the outer package:

i) The generator's name;~~;~~

ii) The generator's address;~~;~~ and

iii) The generator's phone number (a 24-hour phone number, if available).

2) The transporter ~~must~~shall~~must~~ mark with indelible ink in lettering that is legible on a water-resistant label or tag securely attached to or marked on the outer package:

A) The transporter's name;~~;~~

B) The transporter's permit number;~~;~~

C) The transporter's address;~~;~~

D) The transporter's phone number (a 24-hour phone number, if available);~~;~~ and

E) For each PIMW package, the shipment date when PIMW initially left the generator's site; or for each shipment, a unique identification number ~~that~~which~~that~~ directly corresponds to the initial date of shipment.

b) Except for subsection (c) ~~of this Section~~, inner packages must be marked as described in subsection (a) (1) (A) (i) ~~of this Section~~.

c) If a sharps container is packaged within an outer container, the inner sharps container must be marked with indelible ink in lettering that is legible as follows:

1) The International Biohazard Symbol, as shown in ~~Section 1421~~ Illustration A ~~of this Part~~, and the word "Biohazard" ~~"biohazard"~~; and

2) The word "Sharps" ~~"sharps"~~.

d) Containers ~~which~~that are not the inner or outer containers are exempt from ~~the labeling requirements in subsection (a) of this Section.~~ Packages may be placed in a transparent container ~~if provided that~~if all required markings are legible through the transparent container. A non-rigid transparent container cannot be used as an outer container.

e) For oversized PIMW, the following requirements must be met ~~before prior to~~before shipment:

1) The generator ~~must~~shall~~must~~:

A) Mark on one side of the outer package in lettering that is readable at a minimum distance of five ~~(5)~~ feet the International Biohazard Symbol, as shown in ~~Section 1421. Illustration A of this Part,~~ and the word "Biohazard"~~"biohazard"~~.

B) Mark with indelible ink in lettering that is legible on a water-resistant label or tag securely attached to or marked on the outer package:

i) The generator's name;;

ii) The generator's address;; and

iii) The generator's phone number (a 24-hour phone number, if available).

2) The transporter ~~must~~shall~~must~~ mark with indelible ink in lettering that is legible on a water-resistant label or tag securely attached to or marked on the outer package:

A) The transporter's name;;

B) The transporter's permit number;;

C) The transporter's address;;

D) The transporter's phone number (a 24-hour phone number, if available);; and

E) For each PIMW package, the shipment date when PIMW initially left the generator's site; or for each shipment, a unique identification number which directly corresponds to the initial date of shipment.

f) When PIMW is transported by more than one transporter, each transporter ~~must~~shall~~must~~ mark with indelible ink in lettering that is legible on a water-resistant label or tag securely attached to or marked on the outer package the information listed in subsection (a) (2) ~~of this Section.~~ The label, tag, or mark must not obscure any previous information on the package.

(Source: Amended at 43 Ill. Reg. _____, effective _____)

SUBPART E: TRANSPORTATION

Section 1421.140 Scope and Applicability

This Subpart applies to persons who transport PIMW and are required to have a PIMW hauling permit ~~byin accordance with~~ by 35 Ill. Adm. Code ~~1429.105 of this Subtitle.~~ 1420.105.

(Source: Amended at 43 Ill. Reg. _____, effective _____)

Section 1421.141 Standards and Criteria

a) PIMW must be transported under conditions that:

- 1) ~~Minimizeto minimize~~ Minimize the effects of putrescence; and,
- 2) ~~prevents~~ prevent a breeding place or food source for vectors.

b) Packages of PIMW must be transported:

1) ~~Onlyonly~~ Only in enclosed compartments of vehicles that are secured against public access when unattended. This ~~requirement~~ does not apply to oversized PIMW, which must be handled in a manner that minimizes contact with transport workers and the public; and,

2) In a manner that:

A) prevents compaction of packages, or

B) does not subject them to stress that compromises the integrity of the container.

c) Vehicles and associated storage compartments, doors, piping, and valving must be:

- 1) Cleaned of visible PIMW contamination after each use; and
- 2) In good repair when transporting PIMW.

~~d) PIMW must be transported in a manner that prevents a breeding place or food source for vectors.~~

~~e) During transport, a PIMW package must not be compacted or subjected to stress that compromises the integrity of the container.df)~~

This Subtitle regulates ~~residues~~ Residues residues from the cleaning

of vehicles contaminated by PIMW ~~are regulated under this Subtitle,~~
except when discharged directly into a sanitary or combined sewer in
~~compliance~~compliance with 35 Ill. Adm. Code Subtitle C.

BOARD NOTE: Interested persons should note that units of local government can regulate discharges to sewer systems ~~can also be regulated by units of local government.~~

~~eg)~~ Vehicles transporting PIMW must display information in ~~compliance~~with the PIMW hauling permit.

~~fh)~~ Emergency ~~response plan.~~Response Plan.

1) The transporter ~~must~~shall develop and keep an emergency response plan in the vehicle.

2) This plan must identify the names and telephone numbers of State and local authorities who must be contacted ~~during~~in the event of an emergency or discharge of PIMW.

3) If there ~~is~~In the event of an emergency or discharge of PIMW, the transporter ~~must~~shall take immediate action in ~~compliance~~with the emergency response plan to protect the health and safety of the public and the environment. In addition, each vehicle transporting PIMW must carry all equipment necessary to provide a response.

~~gi)~~ Vehicles transporting PIMW must not be used ~~to~~for the hauling of non-waste materials, except ~~for~~with the exception of equipment and supplies intended for ~~the use of~~ waste management, including scales, bar coding equipment, printers, stampers, manifests, logs, dollies, load locks, conveyers, material handling equipment, plastic containers, corrugated boxes, plastic bags, tape, sharps containers, drums, labels, signs, stickers, spill kits, new PIMW containers, or PIMW containers that have been cleaned and disinfected in ~~compliance~~with 35 Ill. Adm. Code ~~1420.107 of this Subtitle.~~1420.107.

~~hj)~~ PIMW must not be in transport for more than ~~ten~~(10) calendar days.

~~ik)~~ This Subpart does not apply to the U.S. ~~United States~~ Postal Service.

~~jl)~~ Each transporter of PIMW required to have a permit under ~~subsection (f) of~~ Section 56.1 ~~(f)~~ of the Act must file a report annually with the Agency specifying the quantities and disposition of PIMW transported during the previous calendar year. ~~Such~~These reports must be on forms prescribed and provided by the Agency. ~~COMMENCING MARCH 31, 1993, AND ANNUALLY THEREAFTER, EACH TRANSPORTER OF PIMW REQUIRED TO HAVE A PERMIT UNDER SUBSECTION (f) OF SECTION 56.1 OF THE ACT SHALL FILE A REPORT WITH THE AGENCY SPECIFYING THE QUANTITIES AND DISPOSITION OF PIMW~~

~~TRANSPORTED DURING THE PREVIOUS CALENDAR YEAR. SUCH REPORTS SHALL BE ON
FORMS PRESCRIBED AND PROVIDED BY THE AGENCY. (Section 56.3 of the Act)~~

(Source: Amended at 43 Ill. Reg. _____, effective
_____)

~~ILLINOIS REGISTER~~

~~POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD~~

~~NOTICE OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS~~

JCAR351421-1902983r01

Document comparison by Workshare Compare on Monday, February 25, 2019
9:57:23 AM

Input:	
Document 1 ID	file:///I:/Input/Agency Rulemakings - Files Received\2019\March2019\35-1421-Agency Proposed-(issue 9).docx
Description	35-1421-Agency Proposed-(issue 9)
Document 2 ID	file:///I:/Input/Agency Rulemakings - Files Received\2019\March2019\35-1421-r01(issue 9).docx
Description	35-1421-r01(issue 9)
Rendering set	Standard

Legend:	
Insertion	
Deletion	
Moved from	
Moved to	
Style change	
Format change	
Moved deletion	
Inserted cell	
Deleted cell	
Moved cell	
Split/Merged cell	
Padding cell	

Statistics:	
	Count
Insertions	76
Deletions	129
Moved from	0
Moved to	0
Style change	0
Format changed	0
Total changes	205